
 

RC130603agn  Page 1 of 2 

CITY OF JACKSONVILLE BEACH 
 

FLORIDA 
 
 
MEMORANDUM TO: 
 
The Honorable Mayor and 
Members of the City Council 
City of Jacksonville Beach, Florida 
 
Council Members: 
 
The following Agenda of Business has been prepared for consideration and action at the Regular 
Meeting of the City Council on Monday, June 3, 2013, at 7:00 P.M. in the Council Chambers, 11 
North Third Street, Jacksonville Beach, Florida. 
 
Opening Ceremonies: Invocation 
 Salute to the Flag 
 
Roll Call 
 
1. APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 
    

 Regular City Council Briefing held May 20, 2013 
 

 Regular City Council Meeting held May 20, 2013 
 

2. ANNOUNCEMENTS: 
 
3. COURTESY OF THE FLOOR TO VISITORS: 
 
4. MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL: 

 
(a) Presentation by Denise Bunnewith with North Florida TPO 
 

5. CITY CLERK:   
 
(a) Approve the Appointment of Jacqueline Thomason as a Trustee on the Police Officers’ 

Board of Trustees 
 

6. CITY MANAGER: 
 

(a) Allocate $12,000 for Fire Department Overtime 
 

(b) Approve a Contract with W. W. Gay and Integrated Systems, Inc. to Install Security 
Cameras at City Hall 
 



Memorandum, Mayor and City Council  
City Council Agenda for June 3, 2013 
 
 

 
RC 130603agn   Page 2 of 2
  

7. RESOLUTIONS: 
 

8. ORDINANCES: 
 

(a) ORDINANCE NO. 2013-8029 – First Reading  
 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 2, ARTICLE V, DIVISION 5, ‘GENERAL 
EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT SYSTEM’ OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE 
CITY OF JACKSONVILLE BEACH; TO PROVIDE FOR A CHANGE IN THE 
ADMINISTRATION OF THE RETIREMENT SYSTEM; PROVIDING A SAVINGS 
CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR THE REPEAL OF ALL ORDINANCES IN CONFLICT 
HEREWITH; PROVIDING FOR CODIFICATION AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE.  

 
 

 Respectfully submitted, 
 
 

 /s/George D. Forbes   
 CITY MANAGER 

 
GDF:cmm 
05/30/13 
 
If a person decides to appeal any decision made by the City Council with respect to any matter considered at any 
meeting, such person may need a record of the proceedings and, for such purpose, such person may need to ensure that 
a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal 
is to be based.  
 
The public is encouraged to speak on issues on this Agenda that concern them.  Anyone who wishes to speak should 
submit the request to the City Clerk prior to the beginning of the meeting.  These forms are available at the entrance of 
the City Council Chambers for your convenience. 
 
In accordance with the Americans with Disabilities Act and Section 286.26, Florida Statutes, persons with disabilities 
needing special accommodation to participate in this meeting should contact the City Clerk’s Office at (904) 247-6299, 
ext. 10, no later than 12:00 PM, Friday, May 31, 2013. 



Minutes of City Council Briefing 
Monday, May 20, 2013 – 6:30 PM 

City Council Chambers 
11 North 3rd Street, Jacksonville Beach, FL 

CC Briefing min 130520 Page 1 of 3 

 

The Council Briefing began at 6:30 PM. 
 
The following City Council members attended: 
 
Mayor Charlie Latham 
 
Keith Doherty 
Steve Hartkemeyer 
Christine Hoffman 
Tom Taylor 
Jeanell Wilson 
 
Phil Vogelsang absent 
 
Also present were City Manager George Forbes, City Department Directors, and Nancy Pyatte, Assistant City 
Clerk. 
 
Purpose of the Briefing 
 
The purpose of the Briefing is to update the Council Members on projects, recent developments, upcoming 
issues, and review of agenda items. 
 
City Manager 
 
City Hall Security Cameras  – 
 
Mr. Forbes advised that the security cameras in City Hall are being converted from VHS to digital.  This project 
has gone out for bid, the costs ranging from $11,887 to $46,000, and there will be a memo for this on the next 
agenda.  The new system will have video and audio capabilities.  Mr. Forbes advised that discussing the location 
details of the cameras is exempt from the open meeting law per Florida Statutes.   
 
Substation Property at Jarboe Park  –  
 
The City of Neptune Beach has requested use of the old substation property at Jarboe Park that our city owns.  
This substation is no longer in use. Mr. Forbes said that Neptune Beach will lease the property from Jacksonville 
Beach for a nominal fee.  Their planned use is for a parking lot.   
 
Transfer of Pension Administration Duties - 
 
Mr. Forbes stated that the three pension boards recently voted to allow the City to transfer the Pension 
Administration duties from the City Clerk’s office to the Human Resources (HR) department.  He advised an 
ordinance is required for the Council to approve this and a memo will be forthcoming.  The plan is to have this 
transfer in place by October 1st.  Mr. Forbes stated that there will be some reorganization in the HR department 
to assign these duties to a benefits coordinator.   
 
The Human Resources Director, Karen Nelson, addressed the Council stating that there will be a reclassification 
of the 3 current HR positions; no additional position/person will be added for this transition.     
 
 



Minutes of City Council Briefing     
held on Monday, May 20, 2013 
 

 
CC Briefing min 130520   Page 2 of 3 

Fire Department Overtime - 
  
The City Manager addressed the additional overtime funding that was recently authorized for the Fire 
Department due to the Fire Marshal being hospitalized.  Mr. Forbes stated that their overtime budget used to be 
$130,000; now it is down to $39,000.  He advised that there will be a memo recommending an additional 
$12,000 to be added to the overtime budget. 
 
The Fire Chief, Gary Frazier, explained that this will cover extra manpower for special events, when people are 
off, special training exercises, and also cover monthly auxiliary training. 
 
Tennis Court Lights at Tennis Center -  
 
Mr. Forbes reported that Gary Meadors, Director of Parks and Recreation, will be requesting that we add lights 
to the only unlighted tennis court at the tennis center. 
 
Food Trucks – 
 
The City Manager stated that Steve Lindorff, Director of Planning and Development, implemented an on-line 
workshop to discuss the draft ordinance he wrote for food trucks to be permitted in the City. Mr. Lindorff has 
compiled the comments from the people who accessed the site.  Mr. Forbes stated there will be a workshop on 
food trucks in June. 
 
Banners –  
 
Mr. Forbes said we will also be looking at the sign code.  The purpose is to address allowing banners for 
businesses and modifying the code for digital signs. 
 
From the exposure on HGTV there is an interest from citizens to purchase the City’s banners along A1A.  We 
are also looking into making posters out of the banners and selling them or giving them out as awards.  
 
Emergency Work on Manhole at 10th Street South  – 
 
Mr. Forbes stated that he authorized this as an emergency project and displayed photos of a collapsed supersized 
manhole that happened just last week (built in 1968).  He said this is very complex work which consists of 
rerouting 3 sewer lines, moving a large water line, and there is a major Beaches Energy line that is in the same 
area.  This project is estimated at $133,000.   
 
The Project Superintendent, Jr. Lilly, addressed the Council and explained details of the project and materials 
used.   
 
Red Cross Historical Marker - 
 
Mr. Forbes reported the Red Cross purchased an historic monument that commemorates the Ocean Rescue 
Corp.  We will work with them to install the monument near the life guard building. 
 
Christmas Decorations  –  
 
The City Manager stated that Dianna Pratt, Property Manager, has been working on the Christmas decorations 
project and there will be a meeting with interested citizens.  Council member Daugherty requested that 
downtown businesses be invited to the meeting. 
 



Minutes of City Council Briefing     
held on Monday, May 20, 2013 
 

 
CC Briefing min 130520   Page 3 of 3 

Orientation –  
 
Mr. Forbes stated there will be a make-up schedule for the Public Works Council Orientation. 
 
Building Construction –  
 
For the month of April there were 10 new residential permits processed, valued at $2.8 million. 
 
Sand Dunes Protection 
 
Mr. Doherty stated he received a call from Mrs. Golding regarding the festivals and the effects on the sand 
dunes.  People were crowding the walk-overs preventing others from walking through, then some started just 
going through the dunes to get back and forth from the beach and boardwalk and Latham Plaza.  Mr. Doherty 
suggested the event permit could have fencing requirements. 
 
The briefing adjourned at 6:56pm.  
 
 
Submitted by:  Nancy J. Pyatte  
   Assistant City Clerk  
 
 
 
                                                              Approved: 
 
 

   

Tom Taylor, Mayor Pro-Tem 

 

   
  Date:  June 3,  2013  

       
 



 

 
RC 130520min  Page 1 of 7 

Minutes of Regular City Council Meeting 
held Monday, May 20, 2013, at 7:00 P.M.  
in the Council Chambers, 11 North 3rd Street, 
Jacksonville Beach, Florida.  
 
CALL TO ORDER: 
 
Mayor Charlie Latham called the meeting to order. 
 
OPENING CEREMONIES: 
 
Invocation was by Council Member Taylor; followed by the Salute to the Flag.   
 
Moment of Silence 
 
Mayor Latham advised that during the Never Quit event, that Sydney Graham, a participant from 
Texas, suffered a heart attack and could not be revived.  Mayor Latham asked everyone to remain 
standing and observe a moment of silence for Mr. Graham. 
 
ROLL CALL: 
 
Mayor: Charlie Latham 
 
Council Members: Keith Doherty Steve Hartkemeyer Christine Hoffman 
 Tom Taylor Phil Vogelsang (absent)  Jeanell Wilson  
 
Also present was City Manager George Forbes, City Department Directors, and City Clerk Judy 
Bullock. 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
It was moved by Mr. Taylor, seconded by Mr. Hartkemeyer, and passed, to approve the following 
minutes, as presented: 
 

 Regular City Council Meeting held May 6, 2013 
 
ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 
Mayor Charlie Latham 

 Mayor Latham stated that he was honored to participate in the official opening of the 
Greenway (Maine to Key West) on Friday, May 10, 2013.  All three beach Mayors were 
there with Jacksonville Councilmember Bill Gulliford, Ferry Commission member Elaine 
Brown, Ferry Task Force Member Mitch Reeves, and our own Director of Planning & 
Development, Steve Lindorff. 

 
 He was also honored to participate in the Police Memorial Service on Wednesday, May 

15, 2013.  Council members and I were also honored to watch an awards ceremony for 
several members of the Police Department and a promotion for Corporal Dan Watts. 



Minutes of Regular City Council Meeting   
held Monday, May 20, 2013 
 

 
RC 130520min  Page 2 of 7 

 
 Mayor Latham advised that he was pleased to be a guest speaker for the Ponte Vedra 

Rotary Club on Thursday, May 16, 2013.  He added that many of the Council’s 
constituents are members of that club and they asked very good questions and provided 
some excellent feedback. 
 

 Mayor Latham stated that it was his honor and pleasure to participate in the Never Quit 
weekend.  He had the privilege of meeting with Bethany Hamilton and several of the 
participants of the Never Quit challenges.  The event was a good family oriented 
weekend and he was glad to see that it was so successful.  Mayor Latham added that there 
were 7,000 participants and the City’s hotels, restaurants, pubs and shops were packed. 
 

 He also was asked to speak at the Regional Leadership Institute on Saturday the 18th.  
There were 25 people selected to participate in the 2013 class.  Mayor Latham said that 
he was proud to be a member of the 2013 Class. 
 

COURTESY OF THE FLOOR TO VISITORS 
 
Speakers: 
 

 Rick Knight, 827 North 8th Avenue, Jacksonville Beach 
 Mr. Knight shared his concerns regarding the recent weekend event.  He felt that the event 

was understaffed and disorganized.  Mr. Knight added that people were trampling through 
the sand dunes, damaging the Sea Oats. 

 
 David Plummer, Sr., 120 North 5th Street, Jacksonville Beach 

Mr. Plummer spoke in opposition to the manufactured/modular buildings installed by St. 
Paul’s Catholic School.  He stated, in his opinion, the buildings do not comply with the 
City’s Building Codes.  Mr. Plummer asked that the City have the buildings removed. 

 
 Sandy Golding, 1203 North 18th Avenue, Jacksonville Beach 
 Ms. Golding expressed her concerns regarding the damages to the dunes during the weekend 

event “Never Quit”. 
 

MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL 
 
(a) Employee of the Quarter Award 

 

 Amy Smith, Human Resources 

 Steve Sciotto, Fire Department 
 

Mayor Latham read letters from the City Manager congratulating Amy Smith, Human Resources 
and Captain Steve Sciotto, Fire Marshal on their outstanding service.  Mayor Latham then 
presented the Employees of the Quarter with an Employee of the Quarter pin. 
 



Minutes of Regular City Council Meeting   
held Monday, May 20, 2013 
 

 
RC 130520min  Page 3 of 7 

CITY CLERK  
 
CITY MANAGER 

 
(a) Monthly Financial Reports – Month of April 2013 

 
Motion: It was moved by Mr. Taylor, seconded by Mr. Hartkemeyer, to approve the 

Monthly Financial Reports for the Month of April 2013. 
 
Mr. Forbes advised that the reports show that the City is in good financial condition. 
 

 Roll call vote:  Ayes:  Doherty, Hartkemeyer, Hoffman, Taylor, Wilson, and Mayor Latham;  
  motion carried unanimously. 

 
(b) Authorize the City Manager to Sign the Florida Municipal Natural Gas Association 

Mutual Aid Agreement 
 

 Mr. Forbes explained that the City has installed 25 miles of natural gas main, which 
serves 163 customers.  TECO manages the day-to-day operation of the system, however 
should the gas utility sustain damage from natural disasters or other emergencies they can 
obtain emergency assistance from other gas utilities, such as personnel, equipment, and 
other associated services. 

 
Motion: It was moved by Mr. Taylor, seconded by Mr. Hartkemeyer, to authorize the City 

Manager to sign the Florida Municipal Natural Gas Association Mutual Aid 
Agreement, as described in a memorandum from the Director of Beaches Energy 
Services, dated May 7, 2013. 

 
Roll call vote:  Ayes: Hartkemeyer, Hoffman, Taylor, Wilson, Doherty, and Mayor Latham; 

motion carried unanimously. 
 

(c) Award Unit Price Bid Number 1213-08, Entitled South Beach Redevelopment Area 
Improvement Project, to G & H Underground Construction, Inc. 

 
Motion:  It was moved by Mr. Taylor, seconded by Mr. Hartkemeyer, to award Unit Price 

Bid Number 1213-08, entitled “South Beach Redevelopment Area Improvements 
Project (in the Williams Coastal & Jacksonville Beach Heights Area),” to the 
lowest qualified bidder, G&H Underground Construction, Incorporated, and 
authorize Construction Engineering Services with the project’s design firm, Jones 
Edmunds, as described in the memorandum from the Public Works Director, dated 
May 8, 2013. 

 
Mr. Forbes explained that the project is part of the City’s 2013 Capital Improvement Plan and 
will include replacement of failing clay pipe, with PVC sewer main pipe.  The project will 
provide reclaimed water for landscaping, replace old fire hydrants, and add 6 new fire 
hydrants. 



Minutes of Regular City Council Meeting   
held Monday, May 20, 2013 
 

 
RC 130520min  Page 4 of 7 

 
Roll call vote:  Ayes:  Hoffman, Taylor, Wilson, Doherty, Hartkemeyer, and Mayor Latham; 

motion carried unanimously. 
 

(d) Authorize Change Order for Phase IIIA Improvements to Unit Price Bid Number 1011-
13, “Phase II – Development Area 1 Improvements Project,” with Petticoat-Schmitt Civil 
Contractors, Inc. and Authorize Construction Administration Services with the Project 
Design Firm, GAI Consultants, Inc. (This includes 6th Ave North from A1A to 1st 
Street) 

 
Motion: It was moved by Mr. Taylor, seconded by Mr. Hartkemeyer, to authorize a Change 

Order to Unit Price Bid Number 1011-13, titled “Phase II – Development Area 1 
Improvements Project,” with Petticoat-Schmitt Civil Contractors, Inc., and 
authorize construction engineering inspection services with GAI Consultants, Inc., 
as described in the memorandum from the Public Works Director, dated May 10, 
2013. 

 
Speaker:  
 

 John Galarneau, 2002 Grove Street, Jacksonville Beach 
 Mr. Galarneau spoke in favor of the improvements and suggested that some of the 

parking spaces on 6th Avenue North have a limited amount of time to use the space 
to allow people to park when patronizing the businesses. 

 
Mr. Forbes explained that this project is part of the City’s Vision Plan.  He is requesting that 
6th Avenue North be added to this project because of two unforeseen events that were not 
known when we bid this construction project. One is the approximately 54 unit apartment 
project that obtained a planned unit development, and the other is the remodeling of the 
empty shopping center, both on 6th Avenue North. 
 
Mr. Doherty asked about the time frame to begin the project. 
 
Marty Martirone, Public Works City Engineer explained that the contractors will begin the 
project in approximately 1 to 2 months and they are looking at a three-month completion 
date. 
 
Ms. Wilson requested confirmation that this project was part of the original plan and that 
Redevelopment TIF funds would pay for the project. 
 
Mr. Martirone responded in the affirmative. 
 

 Roll call vote:  Ayes: Taylor, Wilson, Doherty, Hartkemeyer, Hoffman, and Mayor Latham;  
 motion carried unanimously. 

 
RESOLUTIONS 
 



Minutes of Regular City Council Meeting   
held Monday, May 20, 2013 
 

 
RC 130520min  Page 5 of 7 

City Clerk Judy Bullock advised Council that the number on the Agenda and Resolution was 
incorrect.  Instead of 1913-2013, it should be 1914-2013. 

 
(a) RESOLUTION NO.  1914-2013 

Mayor Latham requested that Resolution No. 1914-2013, be read by title; whereupon Ms. 
Bullock read the following: 

  
“A RESOLUTION PROVIDING FOR THE ANNUAL SALE OF 
SCRAP METAL.” 
 

Motion: It was moved by Mr. Taylor, seconded by Mr. Hartkemeyer, to adopt Resolution 
No. 1914-2013, approving the annual sale of scrap metal to the highest qualified 
bidder. 

 
Mr. Forbes introduced new Purchasing Administrator Jason Phitides and advised that Mr. 
Phitides recommended that the scrap metal, wire, steel, etc. be sold at auction rather than by 
bid.  By auctioning the scrap metal, the City hopes to receive a higher price than the bid 
process. 

 
Roll call vote:  Ayes:  Wilson, Doherty, Hartkemeyer, Hoffman, Taylor, and Mayor Latham; 

motion carried unanimously. 
 

ORDINANCES 
 
(a) ORDINANCE NO.  2013-8027 – SECOND READING 

 
Mayor Latham requested that Ordinance No. 2013-8027, be read by title; whereupon Ms. 
Bullock read the following: 
 

“AN ORDINANCE ESTABLISHING A PLANNED UNIT 
DEVELOPMENT (PUD) DISTRICT WITHIN THE CITY OF 
JACKSONVILLE BEACH, FLORIDA, AS PROVIDED UNDER 
THE JACKSONVILLE BEACH LAND DEVELOPMENT CODE, 
CHAPTER 34 OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF SAID CITY.”  
(This request is for a veterinary clinic to be located on a vacant 0.49-
acre parcel of land on the north side of Jacksonville Drive, 50 feet west 
of State Road A1A)  
 

Motion #1: It was moved by Mr. Taylor, seconded by Mr. Hartkemeyer, to adopt Ordinance 
No. 2013-8027, rezoning a 0.49 acre parcel of land located on the north side of 
Jacksonville Drive, 50 feet west of State Road A1A, from Commercial, 
Professional Office: CPO to Planned Unit Development: PUD to allow the 
development of a 7,500 square foot veterinary practice, as read by title.  

 



Minutes of Regular City Council Meeting   
held Monday, May 20, 2013 
 

 
RC 130520min  Page 6 of 7 

Mr. Forbes advised that the Council held a Public Hearing two weeks ago and described the 
layout of the proposed veterinary practice.  He added that the Planning Commission had 
unanimously approved the project. 
 
Ms. Wilson requested confirmation that the roadway on the property would remain open. 
 
Mr. Forbes advised Ms. Wilson that the roadway is part of the applicant’s property, however 
there is a public easement granted to the City, and it will remain open to traffic. 
 
Roll call vote:  Ayes: Doherty, Hartkemeyer, Hoffman, Taylor, Wilson, and Mayor Latham; 

motion carried unanimously. 
 
Motion #2: It was moved by Mr. Taylor, seconded by Mr. Hartkemeyer, to approve 

Findings of Fact – Ordinance No. 2013-8027. 
 
Roll call vote:  Ayes: Hartkemeyer, Hoffman, Taylor, Wilson, Doherty, and Mayor Latham; 

motion carried unanimously. 
 

(b) ORDINANCE NO.  2013-8028 – SECOND READING 
 

Mayor Latham requested that Ordinance No. 2013-8028, be read by title; whereupon Ms. 
Bullock read the following: 

 
 “AN ORDINANCE VACATING, DISCONTINUING, ABANDONING 
AND CLOSING THE EASTERLY SEVENTY-FIVE (75) FEET OF A 
CERTAIN TWELVE (12) FOOT WIDE PUBLIC ALLEY RUNNING 
IN AN EASTERLY AND WESTERLY DIRECTION THROUGH 
THAT CERTAIN PROPERTY IN THE CITY OF JACKSONVILLE 
BEACH, FLORIDA, KNOWN AS BLOCK 19, MUNDY DRIVE 

TERRACE SUBDIVISION, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF 
RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 15, PAGE 96 OF THE CURRENT 
PUBLIC RECORDS OF DUVAL COUNTY, FLORIDA.  (Former 
George Moore Chevrolet dealership) 
 

Motion #1: It was moved by Mr. Taylor, seconded by Mr. Hartkemeyer, to amend ordinance 
 No. 2013-8028 to reserve a perpetual utilities easement for the benefit of the 

City of Jacksonville Beach, over the abandoned portion of the subject alley. 
 
Wyman Duggan, Attorney for the project, advised that they were going be responsible for 
removing the sewer line during construction.  However, it was determined that the existing 
sewer line will become the tie-in point for sewer service for the new development.  So, the 
current line will not be removed. 
 
Mr. Forbes explained that the only utility in the alley is an 8” sewer line, which crossed 8th 
Street to serve the George Moore car dealership buildings in Block 18.  He added that the 



Minutes of Regular City Council Meeting   
held Monday, May 20, 2013 
 

 
RC 130520min  Page 7 of 7 

only condition of approval of this partial alley abandonment is that the City be granted a 
perpetual easement over the alley for maintenance of the existing sewer line. 

 
Roll call vote:  Ayes:  Hoffman, Taylor, Wilson, Doherty, Hartkemeyer, and Mayor Latham; 

motion carried unanimously. 
 
 
Motion #2: It was moved by Mr. Taylor, seconded by Mr. Hartkemeyer, to adopt  Ordinance  
 No. 2013-8028, as amended, abandoning and closing the Easterly 75 feet of the 

12-foot wide public alley, located in Block 19, Mundy Drive Terrace 
Subdivision. 

 
Roll call vote:  Ayes:  Taylor, Wilson, Doherty, Hartkemeyer, Hoffman, and Mayor Latham; 

motion carried unanimously. 
  
ADJOURNMENT 
 
There being no further business coming before the Council, Mayor Latham adjourned the meeting at 
7:45 p.m. 
 
Submitted by: Judy L. Bullock  
 City Clerk 
 
 
 
   Approval: 
  
 
 
      

   Tom Taylor, Mayor Pro-Tem 
 
    Date:  June 3, 2013  










































	RC 130603 agn cmm
	CC 130520 Briefing Minutes njp
	RC 130520 min jlb
	1
	1a
	3
	4.
	5



